
FIRST COMMITTEB, S08th 
(CLOSING) MEETING 

JOINT SECOND AND 
THIRD COMMITTEB, 68th 

(CLOSING) MEETING 

Saturday, 2 February 1962, at 3 p.m. 

Palais de Chaillot, Paris 

CONTENTS 
Page 

The problem of the independence of Korea : report of the United Nations 
Commission for the Unification and Rehabilitation of Korea. Relief 
and rehabilitation of Korea : reports of the United Nations Agent 
General for Korean Reconstruction (A/1881, A/1884., A/1935 and Add.1, 
A/rn72, A/2038, A/C.2&3/101, A/C.1/713-A/C.2&3/104, and A/C.1./714.
A/C.2 &3/105) (concluded) • • • • . • • • • • • • • . . . • . • • • • . • • • • • . . . . • • • . • • • • 293 

Chairman: Mr. Finn MoE (Norway). 

The problem of the independence of Korea : report 
of the United Nations Commission for the Unifi
cation and Rehabilitation of Korea. Relief and 
rehabilitation of Korea : report of the United 
Nations Agent General for Korean Reconstruction 
(A/1881 1, A/1884 2, A/1935 and Add.I, A/1972,
A/2038, A/C.2&3/101, A/C.1/713-A/C.2&3/104 and 
A/C.1/714-A/C.2&3/105) (concluded) 

[Items 17 and 27)* 

1. Sir Keith OFFICER (Australia) considered that the
course advocated in the three-Power draft resolution
(A/C.1/713-A/C.2&3/104.) was the wisest one which the
United Nations could follow in the present circumstances
where, on the one hand, the fighting continued in Korea
while, on the other hand, negotiations for an armistice
agreement were going on. The first duty of the Assem
bly should therefore be to avoid any steps which might
confuse the issue by re-opening military questions already
settled in the field, or introducing political matters which
could only usefully be discussed after the fighting had
ended. Certain representatives had attempted to open
a debate along such lines, on the basis of the assertion
that the negotiations had broken down. This assertion
had been denied by the Unified Command, and the com
muniques of the last few days showed that there was
hope of a happy outcome.

2. The First Committee had decided recently to defer
its discussion of the Korean item3 and the situation had
not changed since then. A debate on the political issues
regarding the future of Korea at present could at the
best only be futile and might in fact hinder the achieve
ment of an armistice.

• See Official R.ecords of the General Assembly, S� Session, Supple-
ment No. 12. 

1 Ibid.., SuJ,Plemmt No, 3. 
* Indicates the item numbers on the General Assembly agenda.

• Ibid., First Committee, 486th meeting.

3. The political objectives of the United Nations in
Korea were the establishment of a unified state under
a democratically elected and independent government,
as clearly established by earlier United Nations resolu
tions. Any useful political debate could only be con
cerned with the ways and means to achieve those objec
tives. Such a discussion would only be possible when
the fighting was over and the chief purpose of the three
Power draft was to provide for this at the appropriate
time.

4. Other developments might make a consideration of
the Korean question by the United Nations necessary
and it was therefore wise that the joint draft resolution
provided that the notification of an armistice should
not be the only condition for the calling of a special
session of the Assembly.

5. He thought that the Committee, while not entering
into a discussion of the report of the UNCURK, should
regard the report as a useful source of information and
a basis for discussion at the special session. Similarly,
the Assembly would at that session have to consider
whether continued political representation by the United
Nations in Korea was necessary and what form it should
take. Until then, the Commission should, of course,
continue its work.

6. The Australian Government would continue to
support the United Nations programme for assistance to
the people of Korea and for the building up of the Korean
economy, to which ends it had pledged last year the
equivalent of almost 4,500,000 dollars in Australian
goods and services. The three-Power draft resolution
contained the essential provisions for the continuation
of the UNKRA programme in Korea.

7. In conclusion, the representative of Australia wished
to stress that the best course for the United Nations
would be, first, to do all to bring the fighting in Korea
to an end, and, when that had been achieved, to consider
ways of reaching a peaceful settlement of the Korean
problem.

293 
A/C.1/SR.508 

A{C.2 &3{SR.68 



_2_94-___________ G_e_n_enl A1mimhly-Sis:th SeS!lion-First Committee

8. _ fr .  Y. fALI K ( nion of oviet ;ocialist Republic )
cons1d r d that th discu ion of f 1e question of the
compet nee of th Cornmit t  to c t.iscu s the Kor n 
q uest ion had clearly shown that tht representatives of 
the Un i ted States, the United Kingd lm and France had 
undertaken a mano:uvre design d to · Jr v nt the General 
Assen:ibJy by all possible means fiom discussing the 
quest ion at the present stag . Thai manceuvre cons i
tuted a flagrant violation of tl 1e Char ter and of the ru les 
of procedure of t he Assembly. Wh,m it had proposed 
to def r the consideration of item 1 �  in he First Com
mittee, the United States delegation had been unable 
to adduce any appropriat rule of pncedure in order to 
account !or �hat arbi�rary action. Th cal ling of the 
pre_sent meeb'?-g constituted a secon1 l and irregular act 
whtch the mt d tales repr sentat tve had committed 
bccaus� he relied on the m hanical maj ority which his 
del gation con troll · d. Here again w� s a violation of the 
Chart r and of the rules of procedur< : .  
9. The representative of the United K ingdom hau not
sue ded m denying the odious cha1 act r of the thr e
Po� r draft resolu�io� and was unahle to produc any 
senous arguments m 1ts suppor . I was obviously the 
purpose of the sponsors to ;hunt the Un it d Nations and 
its main organs away from the consid ration of U1e 
�ore� problem a� the pr s n� �imE , so as to pr vent 
discu 10n cone rnmg the act1vtties of the m rican 
aggr rs in 1 orea. Th ir wish vas to enabl the 
American Command in Kor a to pe1 sev re in the bar
barous bombing and strafing of the Korean people , of 
d us . ly popu1al d towns and cit ie: : , and to destroy
ho p1tal , schools and olh r institut ion . 
10 . The manreuvrcs of tho nitod ;tat s and its two
partn rs likewise betrayed the un- N i l lingnes of the
Government of_ the Unit cl States_ 1 attain pcac , in
Kor a . It r h d on the expansion of aggression to
encompass ot only Korea but all of the Far .!. t .
Tha.t had been further reveal cl by the decisions taken
at a recent me ting of th Chiefs of ta.ff of the three
�owcrs in Washington and during tl e recent conversa
tion between Prime Minist r Churchill and President
Truman.
1 1 .  The argument to th fleet tha1 .  the consideration 
of lhe K?r�an questi?n _at th� present tjme could hamper 
the anmstlce negotiations m Korea had been utterly 
refuted and its inconsi t ncy had en compl tely 
r� ealed by . the Head . of the Soviet delegation at the
Fir t omnuttee meetm� on 9 Jauuary 1952.4 The 
repr sentative of the mt  d Kingdcm had ref rred to 
th fact that the Assembly could not c .iscuss the question 
of the building of airfields in orthern Korea. But who 
had proposed that the sembly sl tould discu such 
matters ? obody. 
1 2. On the other hand ,  the discussion of measures 
designed to lend assistance toward a successful conclusion 
of the negotiations Ln K r a was wit hin the province of 
th Genera] ssembly. l t would pedite and fa i l itate 
l hose negotiations, which had been rotracted because
oi lhe attitude of the Am rican Com nand. But it was 
that type of _mscussion of . the Korean question in the 
Assembly which the American aggr ;;sors feared : they 
fc�r�d to have t_o answer b fore the har of world public 
op1mon for th u aggressive and ba ·barous actions in 
Korea, for having sabotaged the n g, itiations in orea. 
The endeavours to shift the blame for the lack of success 

• Ibid.

experi need in th negotiations to the Kor an or C hi n  · 
party were obviously artificial. 
1 �. The representative of th United tates had also 
d_1st?rt 9 the facts when he had alleged that the n go
hattons m Korea llad bcgUI1 on the init ial ive of the Uni t ed 
Stat . Those n got iation had commenced after a 
statem nt made by the representativ of the vi t 
Union on 23 Jui:i 1951 .  The essence of that spe ch 
had al o been distorted by 1.he repres n tative of t he 
United States when he had asserted t hat it had made 
mention ?f certain_ intention of the Korean party to 
the con flict . Ob 10usly, no such mention could have 
been made in vi w of the fact that the Soviet Union was 
not a party to the Kor an con flict . That could he 
read ily check�d by reading the t�xt. of the speech whkh 
had be n deliver d over th radio m the series entitkd 
" The �rice o f  P�ce " .  organized by the Departm nt 
of Public I nformation of th nited ations. That text 
shows clearly tl 1at negoriations w re to be based on the 
notion of withdrawal from the thirty-eighth parallel. 
At the very beginning of the nego

.
tiations, however ,  the 

repr • cn�atives of the l:Jnit d States had objected to 
that not�o_n and ,had applied all sorts of pressure, military
and P?hhcal . D1e Korean party, anxious to obtain 
peace m Korea , had a�reed to establish the demarcation 
line, not along the tlurty-eighth paralle l ,  but along the 
actual front lin . That had been interpr ted throughout 
the world as a token of he sincere desire for peace of 
that party. Th t agre m nt ,  however, had awak ncd 
the fears of the ruling circles of the United States th.it 
it might lead to a rapid agreement on the cease-fire as 
� whole. _That appe<:red clearly from the speech made 
m the First o�ttee on 17 ovembcr 195 1 by 
:M r. Acheson 6• His statement made it manifest th.it 
th ovemment of the Un ited States was determined 
to dday _the negotiations by digging up new prct x t s.
That a�t1tude was a1so being reflect d in the "Press of
the mted Stat s. The P ntagon, th hite Hou and 
�he n�ral aff �n Tokyo were afraid of peace. J I  the 
mternahonaJ_ t n 10n ��at u, hC?� would it be po sib le 
to _make umv rsal military trammg acceptable in the 
Umted �tates , how would it be possibl • to set up a 1 ii5 
group Ai_r Fore ? How could _ •  ranee and the Uni ted King
dof!l be mduc � to lower t heir levels oJ consumption and 
to increase the i r  levels of armament ? How could hey 
be induced to a pt Japanese and German rearmam nt ? 
Gen ral van Fl t stated r cently that " the Korean war 
was a blessing ". As far _as the Am rican monopolists 
wer . concer ned, the \ ar m Korea was nothing out a 
blcssmg. That was why they were afraid of putting an 
e;1d to that war and of �e ing the Gen ral Assembly co:n
s1d r the Korean question because that might actual ly 
expedite the ttainment of peace in Korea. 
1,. The United States r presentati e at Panmunjom 
had_ resorted_ t? threats and blackmail ,  in their attempt
to impose nd1culous demands in onnexion with the 
!epair an<l: buil�ng of airstrips in nor thern Korea and
m_ co�ex10n with the exchange of prisoners o[ war.

10lat1ons of the neutral zone, bombing and raling f 
th peaceful population o.nd military pressure on the 
battlefield had been re. or1 d to by t he United Stat es 

om��d in order_ to el icit co�cessions,  to d l ay the 
negotiations, and, rn the meantime , to replenish their 
arsenals in preparation for further aggress10n. 
1 5. The brutalities engag d in by th merican aggrcs-
ors were exempli fied by a report emanating from the 

• lbi.d., 4�6th meeting.



508th Meeting-2 February 1952 295 

Korean Central Telegraphic Agency, according to which 
on 9 January American airplanes had strafed the Korean 
village of Ul-nim in the Kangwon province with toxic 
explosive projectiles, wounding 50, poisoning 83 and 
burning down several peasants' huts. That village was in 
a mountainous region far away from any urban commu
nity or military objective. Those methods were resorted 
to by the Americans in Korea because their purpose 
was to exterminate the Korean population. That was 
why they were afraid of the consideration of the Korean 
question in the Assembly. 

16. However, the Assembly could not ignore the pro
blem, for it was the most acute one facing it at present.
The conclusion of negotiations in Korea would constitute
the settlement of a basic international problem which
at the present time prevented the achievement of agree
ment on the important questions such as the prohibition
of atomic weapons, the institution of international control
of atomic energy, the reduction of armaments and armed
forces, the conclusion of a peace pact among t}J.e great
Powers, the convening of a world disarmament confer
ence and other questions, the settlement of which would
create the proper conditions for putting an end to the
armaments race and to the preparation for a third world
war.

17. The representative of the Soviet Union therefore
demanded that the Committee reject the three-Power
draft resolution and proceed without delay to the consi
deration of items 17 and 27 of the agenda of the Assembly.
Decisions should be adopted with a view to assisting
in the conduct of the negotiations in order to help in
the achievement of their successful outcome.

18. Mr. BELAUNDE (Peru} thought that a political
discussion at the present juncture would, far from leading
to agreement, further enhance the divergencies of opinion
in the Committee and thus also among the negotiators
in Panmunjom, to whose present differences political
differences would be added. An armistice depended on
two factors : the one ethical, being the will for peace,
and the other realistic, being military balance. One
should therefore not add a political clement as a third
factor.

19. If no further consideration were given to the matter,
the decision taken by the First Committee to defer
consideration of the Korean problem would have led
to a postponement of the problem to the next General
Assembly. The three-Power draft was, however, neces
sary to take care of any unforeseen situation by convening
a special session of the General Assembly. Of course,
Members could always n•quest the holding of an extra
ordinary session, but it was of great importance that
the Assembly should show its interest in the question
by deciding now that such a session would be held when
conditions made it desirable. The interest which the
Soviet Union appeared to show in having the Korean
problem examined should, in fact, lead it to support
the proposal for the holding of a session immediately
after the signing of an armistice or as soon it was knovvn
that a crisis had occurred.

20. The signing of an armistice depended in fact upon
the will to peace of the Soviet Union, but there seemed
to be no such will, and it was therefore easy to imagine
where discussions in the F'irst Committee at the present
juncture would lead. The Soviet Union could do no
greater favour to the people of Korea and to mankind
than to use its influence so that an armistice was signed
quickly, rather than w insist that the Korean question

be discussed in all its bitterness now at the present session 
of the General Assembly. 

21. Mr. BIRECKI (Poland} considered that the repre
sentative of the United States, in concert with those
of the United Kingdom and France, after having
requested the postponement of the consideration of the
Korean problem in the First Committee, now wished to
eliminate it entirely from the agenda. The reason why
they had not asked for such an elimination in the first
place was only that such a request at that time would
have raised a storm of protest. The present draft
resolution was a conclusive proof of the fact that the
United States considered Korea its exclusive preserve.
However, it was the duty of the Assembly to deal with
the question, particularly at the present time, when the
three Governments in question, were preparing aggression
against the People's Republic of China.

22. The argument, according to which discussion of the
Korean problem in the Assembly at the present time
would hamper the conclusion of an armistice in Korea,
showed the cynicism with which the United States
played its role in the Korean conflict. The United
States Government wished the United Nations to serve
as a smokescreen for its aggression. If it was seriously
interested in the independence of Korea, then it could
demonstrate its interest by agreeing to the withdrawal
of all foreign troops from that country. The United
States Government, being unwilling to do that, consi
dered that discussion of the present item would be pre
mature because the independence of Korea did not fit
into its plans.

23. The report of UNCURK sought essentially to
justify the conditions of terror which prevailed in Korea 
under the American occupation regime. Despite the 
intentions of the authors of the report, it clearly estab
lished the responsibility of the Government of the 
United States for conditions in Korea. That respon
sibility could not be hidden from world public opinion 
despite the attempt now made to eliminate the items 
relevant to that matter from the agenda of the present 
session. Paragraphs 155 and 17 4 of the report illus
trated what kind of assurances apparently satisfied the 
Commission. It was far from premature for the Assem
bly to deal with the problem of the independence of 
Korea. On the contrary, light should be cast on Ameri
can doings in that country. 

24. The representative of the United States likewise
proposed postponement of the discussion of the problem
of the rehabilitation and reconstruction of Korea. In
fact, American airplanes were destroying that country.
It was premature, indeed, to discuss that question,
because the Government of the United States did not
want Korea to be reconstructed. The cynicism of the
American Government appeared fully in the last para
graph of the draft resolution calling for " voluntary
contributions " for the relief and rehabilitation of
Korea.

25. The draft resolution did not stipulate who would
be empowered to determine when the time had come to
convene a special session of the Assembly. The arbiter
of the situation would be the so-called Unified Command
and the Assembly would thus find itself entirely in the
hands of that Command. That Command again, as
revealed by General MacArthur in a testimony before
the Joint Armed Services and Foreign Relations Com
mittee of the Senate of the United States, was dependent
on the War Department and the State Department, so



296 Generul Asseml,ly-Sixth Session-First Committee 
--------------

that the Assembly would be convened at the behest of 
the Pentagon. 
26. Despite the principles of international law, the
United States Command continued to press for the
exchange of prisoners on a one for one basis, and likewise
tried to impose a condition under whicL the reconstruction
of facilities destroyed by Americans "·ould be forbidden.
That showed the difficulties raised by the American
Command in Korea to prevent the conclusion of an 
armistice.
27. The American Press itself, as evidenced by the
special correspondent of The New York Times in Korea
as early as November 1951, had admit-:ed that the Ameri
can army was weary of the Korean war. That news
paper had stated : " the Communi�t negotiators are
regarded by numerous American soldiers as partisans
of peace". The armistice depend �d on the United
States General Stafi and on the Government of the
United States, but the United States did not want any
cessation of hostilities. They wished the extension of
the conflict into Chinese territory. :?resident Truman,
in his State of the Union message for 1!}52, had made
it clear that military action in Kor,:a would continue
until an armistice had been signed, provided that the 
armistice embodied the acceptance of all American con
ditions.
28. As regards the words " other developments in
Korea " in paragraph I of the draft resolution, every
body knew the American preparation!, for the expansion 
of the Korean conflict. One nced,:d only to recall 
General Bradley's mission, in September 1951, designed 
to assess the risk implicit in such an exF ansion. Mr. Dean 
Rusk was now continuin� the work of Mr. Dulles in 
Tokyo, aimed at the remihtarisation c,f Japan for future 
war against the People's Republic oi China, which the 
Japanese militarists, according to the plans of the 
American aggressors, were supposed 1o wage in concert 
w:ith the survivors of the Kuomintang in Formosa. The 
United States, the United Kingdom and France had 
been plotting against the People's Republic of China 
for a long time. Their last steps in t 1at connexion had 
been taken during the recent meetin� of the Chiefs of 
Staff of those three Powers in Wash ngton and during 
the conversa.tions between President Truman and Prime 
Minister Churchill. Those Powers w:shed to have the 
Korean question removed from the agenda of the Assem
bly because they did not want the IJnited Nations to 
hamper those preparations. Americm methods were 
revealed in the interview with the United States charge 
d'a ffaires in Rangoon which had apreared in the New

York Herald Tribune on 20 January · %2, in which the 
charge d'affaires had declared that Euomintang bands 
operating in Burma were armed net by the United 
States Government but by Americar adventurers. It 
was hardly possible to believe that Amc,rican adventurers, 
however great their spirit of enterprise, could actually 
equip whole divisions. 
29. Experience showed that in co·mexion with the
Korean question the United States always adjusted
itself to the United Nations when it fdt that the United
Nations could serve its purposes aud objectives. It
could thus be expected that the United States wished
to reserve the possibility of convenin� a session of the
Assembly at a time which, in its judgment, would be
deemed convenient.
30. In view of those considerations, the representative
of Poland would vote against the 1hree-Power draft

resolution and in favour of the procedure advocated 
by the representative of the Soviet Union. 
31. Mr. QUEVEDO (Ecuador) thought that it mi�ht
be asked whether the most important events upon which
the fate of the world depended were not perhaps taking
place outside the orbit of influence of the United :-Jations.
That was a question which should be reflected upon by
all governments and by all peoples of the world. The-re
was no doubt, however, that the United Nations cou]d
not be required to do what, by virtue of its constitution,
it could not do. Korea was the most shining example.
He believed that the States which had military foro�s
in Korea as a result of the collective action taken against
aggression, particularly the United States of America..
were there merely because of a mandate given to them
by the United Nations to defend the victim, and that
they were sincerely seeldug peaceful solutions. Any
premature discussion of the problem might upset the
armistice negotiations and his delegation would therefo:rc
vote for the three-Power draft resolution.
32. If the United Nations, in future, did not tackle the
basic problems of the world, it would admit its incapa
city to fulfil the functions conferred upon i t  by the
Charter. On the other hand, by not allowing the armis
tice negotiations to be complicated, it was fulfilling its
mission and it was for that reason alone that his dcl•:!-
gation would support that draft resolution.
33. Mr. HRSEL (Czechoslovakia) said his delegation
regarded the three Powers that had sponsored the draft
resolution as trying to prevent a discussion of the
Korean question despite the desire of the peace-loving
peoples of the world for a contribution by the Gcneul
Assembly to the solution of the bloody struggle. There
had been manreuvrcs from the outset to prevent debate
on the Korean question. First of all, t11e United States
had demanded that discussion be deferred to the end
of the session on the grounds that it might have embar
rassed the armistice negotiations. It was, however, the
duty of the Assembly to facilitate those negotiations.
At the present stage, the United States proposed that
there be no debate whatsoever. The United States
having unleashed war in the Far East, did not desire
to have its criminal acts discussed but rather wished to
enlarge its aggressive adventure.
34. The reason for the absence of any settlement as
yet was the policy of the U nitcd States which was directed
towards arousing hatred against the People's Republics
of Korea and of China. The United States refused to
recognize the Central People's Government of China
and consistently rejected proposals for a peaceful settle
ment in Korea. It had only been after the initiative
of the Soviet Union that the State Department had
been forced to begin negotiations. However, it would
not bring them to a conclusion because it sought
not peace, but new military operations in the Far
East.
35. The United States bad failed to enter with the
necessary spirit of goodwill into the negotiations at
Kaesong. When the Korean dele�ation had made 
concessions, the United States had nused new obstacles. 
Eventually, the United States had succeeded in making 
negotiations impossible in Kaesong by violations of the 
neutral zone. Since the beginning of negotiations at 
Panmunjom, United States actions had been no more 
than part of a campaign to pretend that a peaceful 
solution was impossible and that the only solution was 
a world war. 



508th Meeting-2 February 1952 297 

3G. The militaristic nature of the United States policy 
had been revealed in the First Committee. In the 
discussion of the Kuomintang slanders, the United States 
had indicated its readiness to engage in new aggressive 
acts. Their plans, for example, on the frontiers of Burma 
were quite transparent. 

:n. The three-Power draft resolution was not a serious 
approach to a solution but an attempt to secure inde
finite postponement. The reference to " premature 
consideration " of such a fundamental question was 
mere cynicism. The issue was the maintenance of 
peace and the proposal was merely a reflection of the 
policy of undermining the negotiations which could 
bring an end to the war. 

38. The Czechoslovak delegation protested against the
procedure which had been followed in the consideration
of the proposal at the dictates of the Anglo-American
bloc. It rejected the draft resolution and supported
the Soviet motion that the First Committee should
examme the question of the independence of Korea.

30. Mr. GARSON (Canada) said his delegation would
vote for the joint draft resolution. It obviously was
good sense to avoid adding difficulties to the armistice
negotiations. In striving to aid Korea to indepen
dence, the United Nations had met and contained
aggression. It seemed essential to defer political dis
cussion on the long-term solution until the negotiations
had led to an armistice. The statements made by the
Soviet Union Foreign Minister could leave no doubt that
consideration of the matter would only make negotia
tions more difficult. It might have been possible to
contribute to progress by a calm and dispassionate dis
cussion, but the Soviet Union representatives had limited
their contributions to abuse and propaganda.

40. The three-Power draft resolution proved how
wrong the Soviet Union Foreign Minister had been on
several occasions. On 12 January, he had charged
that the United States and United Kingdom represen
tatives wished to postpone consideration of the Korean
question sine die and to remove it from the agenda.
The draft resolution proposed postponement only until
the conclusion of an armistice in Korea or when other
developments made consideration of the Korean ques
tion desirable. The proposal would have the matter
considered only when something positive could be
achieved.
41. With regard to part II of the draft resolution,
Mr. Garson recalled that under the terms of resolu
tion 410 (V), the General Assembly had shown the
intention of aiding Korea to restore its economy.
205, out of 250 million dollars had already been pledged.
The Canadian Government had given its support from
the start and had paid out $7,250,000. Mr. Garson
expressed confidence that the remainder would be
provided by other States. His delegation would sup
port that part of the draft resolution.

42. With regard to the remarks made by the represen
tative of the United States regarding the deferment of
that part of agenda item 11 which related to chapter VII,
section I of the Economic and Social Council's report,
Mr. Garson suggested that in his report the Rapporteur
should note the point concerning the deferment, since
it was not covered in the draft resolution.

43. Mr. KISEL YOV (Byelorussian Soviet Socialist
Republic) said it was clear from the draft resolution that
the three Powers did not find it convenient to discuss
the Korean question in view of the political and military

situation. Behind the screen of the United Nations, 
the United States was determined to prosecute the war 
further. The unwillingness to seek a solution either at 
Panmunjom or in the General Assembly, revealed the 
true attitude of the United States towards the Korean 
people. The war in Korea had resulted from the aggres
sive policy of the United States which was directed 
towards the preparation of a new war. Everything 
possible was being done to suppress Korean demands 
for deliverance from the colonial yoke. The commu
nique on the Truman-Churchill conversations had 
announced a community of views regarding the Far East 
and full support for the war in Korea. 

44. The United States disseminated lies about atro
cities on the part of the North Koreans and the Chinese
volunteers. But under the flag of the United Nations,
the United States was indulging in every sort of bruta
lity. Full reports had been given on the tortures and
massacres in the prisoner of war camps which were
aimed at forcing the prisoners to disclose military
secrets. The American air pirates scattered napalm
and high explosives on peaceful populations, while the
warships bombarded fishing villages. Those massacres
resulted from the failure of the American imperialists
in Korea who had resorted to terrorism in order to force
the population to accept the United States conditions.

45. Mr. Kiselyov quoted newspaper reports to indicate,
on the one hand, that the Anglo-American bloc was
prepared to extend the war, while blaming the Chinese
and North Korean Governments for the failure of the
negotiations and to show, on the other hand, that world
public opinion demanded the withdrawal of all foreign
troops.

4G. The three-Power draft resolution would circumvent 
the Security Council which had been given certain 
responsibilities under the Charter. The United States 
regarded the Security Council as an obstacle to its 
aggressive policy and attempted to substitute the 
General Assembly for it where it could wield its mecha
nical majority. The goal of the draft resolution was 
to ignore the Security Council in violation of the funda
mental principles of the United Nations. 

47. The representative of Canada had asserted that
the Soviet Union representatives had resorted to pro
paganda. However, the representative of Canada had
produced no facts or evidence and it was incontestable
that a war was being waged and United States troop�
were participating, while there were no troops from the
Soviet Union or the People's Democracies. The world
knew that the United States could end the war in Korea
immediately, but its ruling circles were terrified lest a
cease-fire hamper the armaments race that was the sole
prop of its economy.

48. The delegation of the Byelorussian SSR believed
that they should reject the three-Power draft resolution
and proceed to consider the Korean question.

49. Mr. TRUCCO (Chile) said that the debate had
taken a form which made it difficult to study calmly the
considerations advanced by the sponsors of the joint
draft resolution. Despite the importance of the issue,
they were being required to give their views very rapidly.
The Chilean delegation had been prepared to examine
the item seriously, but could not judge the merits of the
situation so rapidly. The Chilean Government believed
that the nations best qualified to judge the desirability
of a political discussion were those which had under
taken the primary military responsibility. Although



298 Gener:J Assembly-Sixth Session-First Committee 
---------------

the reasons which had been advanced for a deferment 
were not fuJly shared, the Chilean Government believed 
that tho nation had been right in �.suming the respon-
ibility of making a j udgment. 

50. Mr. Trucco r called that be h 1d forecast in the
First ommitt · th t a di cussion on postponement
would lead to a situation where the � ,oviet Union would
propagandi z  and enter into substan :ive matters, while
others sal by in mb rrassed silence. That had in fact
happ ned .  The representatives of the Soviet nion 
had po d a U1 imtiators of the am jstice negotiations. 
1n fact , th ovi t nion proposal bid down the same 
t rm as those wh icl1 had been prev ously proposed by 
the Unit d ations and rej ected by the Peking regime. 
Those omitted pol it ical matters which had previously 
been urged on various occasions as ess, !ntial prerequisites. 
In the int rval b tw en the l ast prcsen· .ation of the United 
Nations pr >p1 sals and thei r repetit on by the Soviet 
Union , h undr ds of thousands of lives had been lost. 
In view of th difficulties encountered in the negotia
tions, i t  could b asked whether the Soviet Union h ad 
been sincere in stating that it favou; ·ed first a solu tion 
o{ lhe military prob ! m or whether it had j ust been 
making propaganda. The essential point was that the 
negotiahons wer in no way due to the in itiative of 
the oviet  Union. 

5 1 .  H, ving b n the Chilean :epresentative on 
U RK, Mr. Trucco was aware of many urgent 

prob! ms which had to be attended :o. He believed it 
would stil l  be possible to examine the reports and the 
activi ti of he  Kor n Reconstrr ction Agency. A 
technical analy ·s of the report need 10t lead to danger
ous poHtical djscussions. study of the needs of 
Korea and of th action taken by I he Agent General 
could n sure the success of the cgc tiating Committee 
referr d o in part l l  of t h · draft resohtion .  r. Trucco 
b Ji ved that U CURK should have sought means for 
the n rat Assembly to examine :he functions and 
powers of an organ that had been established in different 
circumstances than xisted at the present time. 
52. Publ ic opinion expected constructive and resolut
action to stop aggressive adven tures. The action taken
in the ca of l orea would detennhe the att i tude of
olher smal l  nat ions wh ich found themselves in simi lar
sit uations. Th Ch ilean delegation would, however,
abstain on the j oint draft resolution ir, view of the consi
derat ions i t  had s tated.
53. fr. RO (United States of America) noted that
the U R and i t s  supporters had rep ated the falsehood
that t h  n i t  d Nat ions or the l nited tates was
gui l ty  of a gre i n in Korea. In addi tion to the evi
dence of the report of C U RK to wh ich he had already
referred, he wish d to draw attention to the report the
United Nations ommission had ac opted on 4 Sep
temb r 19 0 whi h ta t  d, in the sec :ion contain ing it
anal i ud oncl u ions, that the im asion of the terri
tor of th Republic of Korea carried out by the ·orth
Korean authori ties on 2. June 1 950 had been an act
of aggression initiated without warning or provocation
in execut ion of a wel l  prepared plan :lesigned to secure
control of lh whole of Korea either b v  underm ining the
Republic of Kor from within or by direct aggression.
54. Mr. Malik h d described h is statement of
23 June 1 .  r. 1 as " an initi tive " on thf part of the Soviet
Union , bu t Mr. ros wished to repeat the view he had
alre dy xpr ss d, that on 23 June, the world had
received an indication, too long d ?ferred, that the

aggressors in Kor a were at last seeking to beg'in 
annist ic  negotiat ions . From the beginning, the nited 

_a ions had maintained the ini tiative for peace and 
lu Govemm ,nt had loyally supported the United rations 
to that end. 
r:, . R vi wing lh many instances of United ations 
and it d tat s atlemp to neo-otiate in Korea, he 
recall d that the United ·ations ommission had been 
requested by the ccurity Counci l on 25 Jun 1950 lo 
estal)li h cont ct wi h the orth Korean authorities 
so as lo obtain an inm diate cessation of hostilitie� 8

, 

but_ had b en unable to do so. On 27  June 1950, tbc
Umt d tatcs Ambas ador had requested the U R 

ovemment to us it influence to secure the withdrawal 
of th i nvading for s of the North Korean authorities. 
The U R had replied recalling its traditional principle 
of non-inter! renc i n  the internal affairs of other States, 
The U R had then vetoed a United States draft reso
lution in tl1e S curity Council 7 calling on all States to 
us t heir i n f luence wi th the North Korean authori ties 
to s ure �t withdrawal .  The USSR had voted against 
the r solution adopted by the General Assembly on 
7 October 1 9:iO 8• I n  ovember 1950, it had vetoed 
the six-power draft resolu tion in the ecurity Council ,  
call ing on a l l  tates t o  refrain from assisting o r  encourag
ing th North Korean authorities 9• Again, as par t 
of th fforts made at the fifth session of the Genera l 
Assembly to n g t ia.t a. cease-fire, the Unified Command 
had at once s nt repre ntatives to discuss specific 
points with th cease-fire group appointed by the Asse 
bly ; that group had subsequen tly reported the refusal 
of the Peking r gimc to enter in to a cease-fire agreement 
exc pt on impo ible onditions. 
56. Wher had been the initiative of the SR ·
those and oth r instances ? The record showed the
real motiv animating the United Nations and the
Unit  d tates. In contrast, the USSR proposed a
four-point programme supposedly designed to facilitate
th negotiations in Korea, including : (a) the introdu,:
tion o f  p L i t ical issn such as the withdrawal of forces
from all of Korea ; (b) the proposal for an armistice
lin on lh t.hirty-c1gh th paral lel, a matter already
set t! d by lhe ne�otia tors in Korea ; (c) the discussion
of  mi l i t  r y  qu  sbons in Paris ; and (d) insult o f  the
United ations negotiators. In ontrast, the United
Nat i ons sough t a j ust ·md honest armistice as soon as
possibl , nnd would proceed immediately thereafter t.o
a sober c nsidera lion of the problem of Korea.
57. Mr. HARANOV KY (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist
R public) said that throughout the current session me

nit d St · tes and others had attempted to preven t 
the n ral Ass mb.ly from considering the Korean 
questi on , t hough that question had been included in 
tbe agenda by th Un ited tates. His delegation and 
oth rs, how ver, � ould not bow to the dictates of the 
Unit  d tales : in� fol lowed_ t_he :peace-l?ving posi ti�n
of the R ,  wh1 h w:1 gammg mcreasmg support m 
the nited ·ation . 
5 . The ni ted tat s r pre ntative had again repeated 
the fabricat ion Lhat aggression in Korea had originated 
from ort h or . The \•hole world knew that that 

• Soe O(ficial l,ecords o/ llre m1ril)• Corm&il, Fi/tk Yrar, 4c73rtl meeting.
7 Jbr'd., 1.S�nd Ol ct tng.
• See O0ici'al Records of the General Asm11 bly, Fifth Sessioti ,  Plena1y

Mating , 29Hh me t ing. 
• See Official Records of t li.e Security Council, flftk Year, 524tb meetin1!-



508th Meeting-! February 1952 299 

aggression had in fact been started by the United States 
as part of its plan for world domination, and a repetition 
of the falsehood would merely produce the opposite of 
the effect intended. 
5H. Pointing out how right the USSR had been in 
declaring that the United States wished to prevent 
consideration of the Korean question by the General 
Assembly, Mr. Baranov-sky said that a r,ew procedure 
had been devised to circumvent the rules of procedure 
of the General Assembly. An illegal new Main Committee 
had been set up and had established its own competence 
to deal with matters which had not been referred to it. 
Why was the General Assembly now not to consider the 
report of a commission established at the previous session 
by the United States ? Had it been thought that the 
matter was not political at the time of its inclusion in 
the agenda ? The answer was to be found in the existing 
military state of affairs in Korea. American military 
circles had hoped to discuss the question in the General 
Assembly after securing victory so as to be able to 
dictate what would happen next. The heroic resistance 
of the North Koreans and of the Chinese volunteers 
had thwarted that hope. 
60. ln that connexion, Mr. Baranovsky cited a recent
article by Hanson Baldwin which had made a pessimistic
appraisal of the prospects facing a new United States
offensive and had concluded that the present bargaining
must be continued. Similarly, Admiral Joy had recently
admitted that the United States relied upon a favour
able change in the military situation. It was clear
that the United States negotiators, despite the great
concessions made by the North ,Koreans and Chinese
volunteers, had never intended that the negotiations
should be successful, and had raised new conditions to
that end, such as those concerning the prisoners of war
and airfields. Such conditions were of the kind imposed
only on a defeated enemy, and had been presented to
enable the United States to break off negotiations and
start the war again when it was ready.
61. The United States and its friends regarded Korea
as a testing ground for expansion in the Far East. Their
objective was now China and other Asian countries, and,
in the first place, Burma. They wished to prevent
consideration of the Korean question in the General
Assembly to avoid exposure of United States policy and
plans.
62. Turning to the joint draft resolution, Mr. Bara
novsky said that the ostensible aims set out in the
preamble would logically call for directives to the United
States Command to cease hostilities, That however, waf:
not the case. It was impossible to state a problem in a
resolution and not propose a way of resolving it. The
second part of the preamble revealed the real purpose,
namely, the desire to avoid consideration at the current
session. As Mr. Vyshinsky had pointed out, the United
States evaded consideration in order to block a peaceful
settlement and because of the fear that discussion would
undermine the whole United States position and would
reveal United States responsibility for the war in Korea.
In that connexion, 1'fr. Baranovsky cited a recent state
ment in the French newspaper Liberation to the effect
that Washington opposed the desire of the small Powers
to continue the current session in Paris because it deemed
the climate unsuitable.
63. The joint draft resolution provided for the convening
of a special session in a manner completely contrary to
the Charter and would represent a further infringement
on the powers of the Security Council in that a special

session was to be convened illegally by the Secretary
General. There was no reason to {?Ostpone consideration 
of the important question of the independence and the 
unification of Korea, which brooked no delay, and he 
therefore supported the USSR proposal. 
64. Mr. LLOYD (United Kingdom) said that he had
been made most aware of the difficulties besetting
endeavours in pursuit of peace in an atmosphere of
bitter recrimination. He hoped that the Soviet bloc
did not underestimate the importance, already stressed
throughout the current session, of lowering the tempera
ture of international debate. He denied the allegation
that the calling of the current meeting had been due to
behind the scenes manreuvering. There was nothing in
the rules of procedure to prevent such a meeting. It was
easy to say, as the USSR representative had said, that
no arguments had been submitted. He would, however,
repeat that the purposes of the United Nations were to
secure an armistice, to reach a political settlement and
to rehabilitate Korea.
65. As for the repetition of the USSR allegation as to
the origin of the hostilities in Korea, Mr Lloyd said that
such repetition was an insult to the intelligence of those
who had any acquaintance with the facts. In connexion
with the question as to who had raised the matter of
airfields, he pointed out that Mr. Vyshinsky, apart from
calling for a return to the thirty-eighth parallel, had 
wanted to discuss anything which had held up the 
negotiations in Korea. That would naturally include 
the matter of airfields. The USSR statement that the 
issue of airfields represented interference in the domestic 
affairs of North Korea was a direct example of the poli
tical arguments to be expected from discussion of the 
question of Korea, arguments which might well make 
the negotiations go on for ever. How did the statement 
that the United States was preparing for more and better 
aggression assist the negotiations in Korea ? 
66. With regard to the Ukrainian SSR's representa
tive's question as to why the matter had been put on
the agenda if it had not been intended to discuss it,
Mr. Lloyd answered that it had been believed that the
negotiations would have been successful long before the
time the General Assembly concluded. He reiterated
his belief that the discussion of the question in the First
Committee had been in part responsible for the difficul
ties encountered. He considered that it was the United
Nations, rather than the North Koreans and the Chinese
Communists, who had made the concessions in the
negotiations. In any case, could not the negotiators
be allowed to get on with the job, leaving the General
Assembly to sketch a blue-print for future action foUowing
the armistice ? The Chinese Communists and the North
Koreans must realize the dangers involved. Any small
fire could easily become a large one, and statements
such as tliose that had just been heard from representa
tives of the Soviet bloc amounted to pouring fuel on the
flames. The world was longing for peace, and the con
stant public emphasis on the hostilities and differences
that existed alarmed everyone. He considered that
there was nothing in the joint draft resolution to which
exception could be taken, or which would in any way
commit nations which wished to avoid taking sides.
67. Mr. Y. MALIK (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub
lics) said that the joint draft resolution called for action
to he taken only after the ostensible aims of that pro
posal, namely the facilitating of negotiations and the
conclusion of an armistice had been achieved. That was
a contradiction, which resulted from the fear that discus-



300 General Assembly-Sixth Session-First Committee 
--------------

sion would produce criticism and tkt discussion in the 
General Assembly would indeed facilitate lhe m·golia
tions. Since the war in Korea was supposedly that of 
the United Nations, why was the United Nations lo be 
regarded as an outsider who must net interfere ? Thal 
sort of argument implicitly admittec! that the war was 
not that of the United Nations, ani corroborated the 
USSR thesis in that respect. 

68. The United Slates rcpresentath e had repeated the
allegation that the aggression in Kc,rea had originated
from the North Korean side, and had referred once again
to the notorious report of the United Nations Commis
sion. That report had long since b�en exposed in the 
Security Council as a MacArthur lal>rication, si&rr1ed. 
inter alia, by tl1e Kuomintang reprc;entalivc, and had 
never been considered seriously. 1 he reference to it 
showed the dearlh of facls at the command of the 
United States representative. The head o[ the USSR 
delegation had recently quoted an article by General 
Willoughby revealing that the Sot Ut Korean armed 
forces had been in full battle array b�forc the beginning 
of hostilities. That officer had presumably been better 
informed than the Commission. The recently published 
secret report of General Wedemey,:r on his visit to 
Korea, in which he advocated the transformation of 
Korea into a buffer state to be effcctei by United States 
troops occupying it, had served, as was clear from subse
quent events, as the basis of United �;tales policy. The 
imperialistic thesis of Wedemeyer had recently been 
endorsed by Walter Lippman in the New York Herald 
Tribune of 3 January to the effect that the United States 
should seek recognition of the whole cf Korea as a buffer 
state between the great Powers. It was sheer hypocrisy 
to speak of the independence of Korea against that 
background. 

G!). In the Senate inquiry into the rdieving of General 
MacArthur of his Command, it had been revealed that 
the United Stales position in the U 1ilcd Nations had 
required it to agree to negotiations wi 1 hout any intention 
of securing a successful conclusion. The world knew 
of the efforts of lhe USSR to settle t: 1c Korean problem 
peacefully. It knew that the USSR had taken the 
mitiative towards a peaceful settlement. Generalissimo 
Stalin had thus called for a peace! JI solution of the 
matter by the Security Council in July 1D50. The 
USSR proposal in the Council, however, had been rejected 
by the Anglo-American bloc, who ha,l prevented North 
Korean participation in the Council's work. The USSR 
proposals, at the filth session of the General Assembly, 
providing for immediate withdrawal of foreign troops 
from Korea and for participation by representatives of 
North and South Korea had also been rejected by that 
bloc. All the manreuvres witnessed, t the sixth session 
had been designed to permit continu..tion of the aggres
sion in the Far East. 

70. Referring to the conference of 1he Chiefs-of-Staffs
of the three Powers in Washington drring the Churchill
Truman talks, Mr. Malik said tbat he l.ad been inslructed
to declare that responsibility for my expansion of
aggression in the Far ]fast, and for the consequences
thereof, would rest entirely upon the United States and
its followers. The United States at .itude and actions
revealed the intention to contir.ue arnression in Korea
and to expand aggression in the Far EasL The facts
adduced showed that the Anglo-Am< rican bloc sought
a third world war, which had already started in the war
against the peoples of Africa and Mia. Though the
representatives of that bloc wished t•> avoid discussion

of vital and important questions, they would not be 
able to cover up their true designs. 
71. The CHAIRMAN stated lhat a vote would be taken
first on the joint draft resolution as that proposal had 
been submitted ftrst.
72. Mr. Y. i\IALTK (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub
lics), pointing out that adoption of tlte USSR propo�al
would exclude lhe need of a vote on the joint dmft
resolution, called for a vote on the USSR proposal firnt.
7:3. Mr. AL-GHOSSAIN (Yemen) requested that the 
vote on the joint draft resolution be taken paragraph by 
paragraph. 
74. Mr. GROSS (United States of America) request,xl
a roll-call vote on the joint dra,ft resolution as a whol.e.
75. The CHAIRMAN put to the vote tlte USSR motion
to vote first on the USSR proposal.
vThe USSR motion was rejected by 44 votes to 5, with 
9 abstentions. 

76. The CHAIRMAN then put the joint draft resolu
tion submitted by France, the United Kingdom and the
United States of America (A/C.1/713-A/C.'2&3/104) to the
vote in parts, as requested.

The preamble was adopted by 51 vot,.;s to 5, with 2 abst,m
tions. 

The first operative paragraph was atlopted by 51 vous 
to 5, with 2 abstentions. 

The second operative paragraph was adupti:tl by 52 votes 
lo none, w·ith 6 abstentions. 

77. The CHA I RMAN then called for a vote on U..1c
joint draft resolulion as a whole.

A vote was tal,en by roll-call as follows : 
Czechoslovakia, having been drawn by tot by the Chair

ma,i, was called 1,po1i to vote first. 
fa favou•r: Denmark, Dominican Republic, Ecuador, 

Egypt, El Salvador, EU1iopia, France, Greece, Guak
mala, Haiti, Honduras, India, Indonesia, Iran, Iraq, 
Israel, Lebanon, Liberia, Luxembourg, Mexico, Nether
lands, New Zealand, Nicaragua, Norway, Pakistan, Pana
ma, Paraguay, Peru, Phjjippines, Saudi Arabia, Sweden, 
Thailand, Turkey, Union of South Africa, Unitt.'Cl King
dom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, United States 
of America, Uruguay, Venezuela, Yugoslavia, Afghanis
tan, Argentina, Australia, Belgium, Bolivia, Brazil, 
Burma, Canada, China, Colombia, Costa Rica, Cuba. 

Against : Czechoslovakia, Poland, Ukrainian Soviet 
Socialist Republic, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, 
Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic. 

Abstaining : Chile, Yemen. 
The joint draft resolution as a whole was adopted ly 

51 votes to 5, with 2 abstentio1is. 

78. The CHA TRMAN then put the motion submitted
by the USSR to the vote.

The USSR motion was rejeded by 52 votes lo 5, wit/� 
1 abstentio1i. 

7fJ. Mr. RAFAEL (Israel), explaining bis vote, consi
dered the resolution adopled by the Committee to be 
a procedural one. The clear declaration of policy in 
lhe preamble could be opposed by no one who sincerely 
wanted peace. Though he had understood that facili
tation of the negotiations in Korea was a common goal, 
the violent language used by those opposing the reso
lution led to anxiety. His country had had occasion 



508th Meeting-2 February 1952 301 

to note the relationship between violent public expression 
and hostile political aims. In supporting the resolution, 
his delegation had been guided by the objective of the 
speedy restoration of peace in Korea. Discussion of the 
future of that country, while fighting was still going on, 
would not facilitate the conclusion of an armistice. 
Expressing confidence that such an armistice would be 
reached, he trusted that no such exigencies as contem
plated in paragraph 1 (b) of the resolution would arise 

Printed in France 

if all those who had any direct influence on the situation 
in Korea would join forces to ensure the will of the United 
Nations, which was so widely supported all over the 
world. 
80. The CHAIRMAN in the absence of further com
ments, stated that consideration of the items before the
Committees was thus concluded.

The meeting rose at 6.55 p.m. 

A-93100-February 1952-3,350




